
           

AGENDA
NORCOM Governing Board

 June 12, 2020, 9:00 am

           

1. Call to Order   

 

2. Roll Call   

 

3. Open Communications from the Public   

 

4. NORCOM Recognition   

 

A. Selection and appointment of Governing Board Vice-Chair.
 

B. 20 years of 911 service -Khai Tran, NORCOM Information Technology Help Desk
 

5. Consent Agenda   

 

A. Governing Board Minutes for May 8, 2020 Meeting
 

B. May Accounts Payable Report
 

6. For Board Briefing   

 

A. E911 IT Reduction Staffing Impacts Update
 

B. NORCOM Civil Disturbance Response
 

7. Staffing Updates   

 

A. Hiring update- IT Director Katy Myers
 

8. For Board Decision   

 

A. Adoption of the 2021 Budget Policy Statement
 

9. Committee Reports   

 

10. Upcoming Agenda Items   

 

11. Executive Session   

1 of 2 

  



11. Executive Session
The Governing Board may hold an Executive Session pursuant to one or more of the following:
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency
enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency litigation or potential litigation to
which the agency, the governing body, or a member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a
party, when public knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial
consequence to the agency;
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of an employee; and
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(f) to receive and evaluate complaints brought against an employee.

  

 

12. Adjournment   

 

 

The next Governing Board meeting is scheduled for July 10, 2020. 

2 of 2 

  



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 05/08/2020
Subject: Selection and appointment of Governing Board Vice-Chair.

Executive Summary:
At the May 8th, 2020 Governing Board meeting, Chief Dan Yourkoski was appointed as the new
Governing Board Chair.  This appointment created a vacancy in the position of Vice-Chair.  

Background:
During the May 8th, 2020 Governing Board meeting, Chief Smith was nominated to fill the Vice-Chair
position but was not present to respond to the nomination.  Chief Smith has since advised NORCOM that
he is unable to accept the nomination. The Vice-Chair position must, therefore, be filled.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
None

Policy and Strategic Implications:
None

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends approval to select and
appoint a new Governing Board Vice-Chair.

Staff Comments:
None

Options
None

Risks
None

Finance Committee Review: No
None
  
Legal Review: No
None 



Joint Operations Board Review: No
None 

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N: n
Fiscal Year: 2020
Account (s):
Fiscal Note:
Fiscal Impact:
None



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: 20 years of 911 service -Khai Tran, NORCOM Information Technology Help Desk

Executive Summary:
Please join NORCOM staff in congratulating Khai Tran for 20 years of 911 technical support and services
to our first responders and the communities we are privileged to serve! Khai has been an important part
of the NORCOM family since the first day we went live in 2009, and before that, he was with the City of
Bellevue IT department.

Background:
NA

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NA

Policy and Strategic Implications:
NA

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff recommends that the Governing Board join the NORCOM team in congratulating Khai
for 20 years of service.

Staff Comments:
None

Options
NA

Risks
NA

Finance Committee Review: No
None 
Legal Review: No
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: No



NA 

Attachments
20 years of service Khai Tran 



 

 

 
 

Memorandum 

To: NORCOM Governing Board  

From: Bill Hamilton  

Re: Khai Tran 20 years of public service  

 

Please join me in congratulating Khai Tran for 20 years of 911 technical support  

and services to our first responders and the communities we are privileged to 

serve! Khai has been an important part of the NORCOM family since the first day 

we went live in 2009, and before that, he was with the City of Bellevue IT 

department.   

 



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: Governing Board Minutes for May 8, 2020 Meeting

Executive Summary:
The May 2020 Governing Board minutes are presented to the Board for review and consideration for
approval

Background:
The Minutes are routinely reviewed by the Governing Board for approval.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NA

Policy and Strategic Implications:
None

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends Board approval.

Staff Comments:
None

Options
NA

Risks
NA

Finance Committee Review: No
NA 
Legal Review: No
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: No
NA 

Attachments



May Meeting Minutes 



Meeting Minutes  
NORCOM Governing Board 

May 8, 2020 
 

MEMBERS  
Nathan McCommon City of Bellevue (Chair) 
Butch Noble  City of Bothell 
Kyle Kolling   City of Clyde Hill 
Dan Yourkoski  City of Normandy Park (Vice Chair) 
Jeff Clark  Eastside Fire & Rescue  
Tracey Dunlap  City of Kirkland 
Steve Burns  City of Medina 
Jeff Magnan  City of Mercer Island 
Rick Rudometkin City of Snoqualmie 
David Burke   Duvall Fire District #45 
Chris Connor  Fire District 27  
Eric Magnuson Northshore Fire Department  
Matt Cowan  Shoreline Fire Department 
Greg Ahearn  Woodinville Fire & Rescue 

 
 
ABSENT  

James Knisley  Skykomish Fire District #50 
Jay Wiseman  Snoqualmie Pass Fire 
Tommy Smith   Redmond Fire Department  

VISITORS   
Deanna Gregory Pacifica Law Group 

   Deb Flewelling  KC E911 
   Michelle Plorde KC E911 
   Cherie Harris   City of Kirkland  
 
 
NORCOM STAFF  

Bill Hamilton   Interim Executive Director  
Roky Louie  Deputy Director, Operations 
Judy Cayton  Human Resources Manager 
Marianne Ryerson  Finance Director  
Michael Olsen  Treasurer   
Brittney Rhodes  Public Records Specialist 
Maggie Johanson Administrative Assistant 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes  
NORCOM Governing Board 

May 8, 2020 
 

o Call to Order 
Nathan McCommon, Governing Board Chair, called the Governing Board meeting to order at 
9:01 a.m. 

 
o Roll Call 

Chair McCommon requested a roll call of present Governing Board members. Maggie 
Johanson, NORCOM Administrative Assistant, reported there was a quorum.  

 
o Open Communications from the Public 

There were no requests for open communication from the public by email or phone.  
 
o NORCOM Recognition 
There were no items for recognition. 

 
o Consent Agenda  

 
o Governing Board Minutes for March 13, 2020 Meeting 
 
o March 2020 Accounts Payable Report 
 
o April 2020 Accounts Payable Report  
 

There was no discussion on any consent agenda items. 
 
City of Kirkland City Manager Tracey Dunlap made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda. City of Medina Police Chief Steve Burns seconded the motion.  
 
Motion carried.   
  

o For Board Decision 
 

o Postponement of Principal Assembly Meeting 
Motion made to postpone the Principals Assembly for an indefinite period due to the 
current pandemic and the Governor’s stay home proclamation and waive deadlines 
provided for in the Interlocal Agreement related to such meeting.  
 
City of Snoqualmie City Administrator Rudometkin made a motion to approve the 
postponement of the Principle Assembly Meeting. City of Mercer Island Services 
Commander Magnan seconded the motion.  
 
Motion carried.  

 
o Governing Board Appointments 

The current Vice-Chair will assume the role of the Chair and the board must elect a new 
Vice-Chair by simple majority vote. Motion was made to select Redmond Fire 
Department Fire Chief Smith as the Vice-Chair and confirming City of Normandy Park 
Police Chief Yourkoski to assume the Chair position.  

 



Meeting Minutes  
NORCOM Governing Board 

May 8, 2020 
 

City of Mercer Island Service Commander Magnan made a motion to approve the 
Governing Board Appointments. City of Snoqualmie City Administrator Rudometkin 
seconded the motion.   
 
Motion carried.  
 
 

o Board Briefing  
 

o Staffing Update  
Human Resources Manager Judy Cayton reported hiring two new employees. Public 
Records Specialist, Brittney Rhodes who comes to NORCOM with prior experience in the 
public safety industry and Finance Director, Marianne Ryerson who in her short time 
with NORCOM has already made substantial changes. Judy provided an update on the 
status of filling the IT Director position, there are two potential candidates. 
 

o NORCOM COVID-19 Health, Safety and Operational Update 
Interim Executive Director Bill Hamilton discussed NORCOM’s action steps in place to 
promote health and safety. Bill Hamilton provided a 3 page document covering the 
Operations, Human Resources, Police & Fire steps to ensure the health and safety of all 
employees. A few key points include workstations being cleaned at the beginning of 
each shift, temperature stations at both entrance doors equipped with a thermometer, 
alcohol wipes, hand sanitizer & Lysol wipes, 58% of employees are working from home, 
an internal COVID-19 team in place as the internal think tank. All of the following steps 
are being well received by the staff. Bill Hamilton stressed the importance of visible 
leadership, making employees feel safe and supported, providing credible and 
consistent messaging. The long term plan is to monitor the states guideline then 6-8 
weeks after, implement our return to business plan. Deputy City Manager McCommon 
asked for clarification on the check in kiosk. It was discussed that it is a self-monitored 
temperature station.  
 

o Bothell Police Department 
Interim Executive Director Bill Hamilton notified the Board that Bothell Police 
Department had approached NORCOM for a bid for service.  

 
o Upcoming Agenda Items 
There were no upcoming agenda items mentioned. 
 

o Executive Session 

The Board went into Executive Session at 9:30 a.m. with approximately 5 minutes of 
recess to join the Microsoft Teams executive meeting, total time of twenty five minutes 
and finishing at 9:55 a.m. Following the Executive Session , the Board returned to open 
Governing Board Session at 9:56 a.m. Action was taken as follows: 

 
 
 
 
  

1 The Governing Board may hold an Executive Session pursuant to one or more of the following: 



Meeting Minutes  
NORCOM Governing Board 

May 8, 2020 
 

• RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency enforcement actions, or to 
discuss with legal counsel representing the agency litigation or potential litigation to which the agency, the governing body, or a 
member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party, when public knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to 
result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency;  
 
 

A second roll call was taken before resuming the Governing Board meeting to ensure there was 
still a quoram present.  
 
City of Clyde Hill Police Chief Kolling motioned to resume the Governing Board Session. City of   
Mercer Island Services Commander Jeff Magnan seconded.  
 
Motion carried   

 
o Action Items 
Appoint Executive Director.  

 
Motion was made by City of Bellevue Deputy City Manager McCommon to move Bill Hamilton 
from Interim Executive Director to Executive Director. City of Mercer Island Service Commander 
Magnan seconded the motion.  
 
Motion was carried.  
 
   
 
o Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Next Governing Board meeting is scheduled for June 12,2020. 

 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
         
Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
         
Secretary 



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: May Accounts Payable Report

Executive Summary:
NORCOM staff is asking that the Board approve this report through consent. This action is routine in
nature and the Finance Manager has reviewed all charges.  

Background:
This action is routine in nature and the Finance Manager has reviewed all charges.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NA

Policy and Strategic Implications:
None

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends approval.

Staff Comments:
None.

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: Yes
Reviewed with no comments or concerns noted 
Legal Review: No
None 
Joint Operations Board Review: No
NA 

Attachments
AP Report 



















MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: E911 IT Reduction Staffing Impacts Update

Executive Summary:
NORCOM relies on 911 revenue sharing from King County to provide funding for NORCOM staff.  In
2020, NORCOM will receive $1,393,239 in 911 revenue sharing funds which represent  10.1% of
NORCOM’s operating revenue.  NORCOM has been notified by King County’s 911 Program Office that
in order to fund IT staff to support the new platform project, NORCOM’s 911 revenue sharing may be
reduced by up to $220,000 in 2021, resulting in anticipated funding of $1,173,239.  NORCOM has asked
the program office to consider other options to include delaying such a reduction.  More information to
follow.  

 

Background:
The E911 Strategic Plan adopted in April 2018 calls for the replacement of the County’s 911 technology
“dual platform” model which is estimated to cost $14 million.  The King County 911 Office has indicated
that it plans to pull back 911 revenue sharing from all Public Safety Answering Points in the county to
fund the project.  At this time, the County has not issued a Request for Proposals for the system
replacement and so the actual cost is not known at this time.  This is an ongoing discussion for the
Regional Advisory Governing Board” (RAGB) and King County E-911 Financial Workgroup.  It is not clear
at this time whether the replacement project financing will impact the 2021 budget since the cost of the
project is uncertain. 
https://kingcounty.gov/~/media/depts/it/e-911/KC-911_StrategicPlan_20171218.ashx?la=en

 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
None

Policy and Strategic Implications:
Any reduction in E911 funding will impact NORCOM's overall budget and may result in staffing impacts.

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends that the Board continue
to monitor this situation and receive updates from NORCOM staff.

Staff Comments:



NORCOM is currently engaged in problem-solving discussions with the E-911 Program Office and RAGB.

Options
None at this time

Risks
Any such funding reduction will have an adverse impact to NORCOM.

Finance Committee Review: Yes
Reviewed 
Legal Review: No
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: No
NA 



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: NORCOM Civil Disturbance Response

Executive Summary:
On Sunday, May 31, 2020, the downtown area of Bellevue was the location of both peaceful and
non-peaceful protests in response to the death of George Floyd in Minneapolis while in police custody. 
The downtown business core was targeted for non-peaceful activities to include acts of vandalism and
civil unrest which were highly impactful to NORCOM operations.   

Background:

In preparation for possible operational service impacts, the NORCOM team developed an Operations
Plan and implemented an Incident Command Structure.   The planning mission priority was to provide
and maintain the ability to safely staff and deliver effective services in support of our first responder
agencies and community at large.   

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NA

Policy and Strategic Implications:
NA

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff recommends that the Governing Board review the summary report.

Staff Comments:

Despite workload capacity challenges, the NORCOM dispatch team worked diligently to perform their
duties until nearly midnight when the crowds began to disperse, and the community and first responders
were safe.  Although somewhat uncommon for a 911 center, the implementation of an Incident
Command team worked well, functioned effectively and collaboratively, and NORCOM staff felt safe and
well cared for throughout the event.   While the incident location and situation was undoubtedly stressful,
staff were mentally and technically prepared for the myriad of critical situations they navigated.  While the
after-action review will likely identify improvement opportunities, I believe that the plan was well
executed, and the NORCOM team performed admirably, particularly when this was an unprecedented
situation for most NORCOM staff.   
 

Options



NA

Risks
NA

Finance Committee Review: No
NA 
Legal Review: No
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: No
NA 

Attachments
NORCOM Civil Disturbance Response 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: NORCOM Governing Board 

From: Bill Hamilton 

Date: June 12, 2020 

Subject: NORCOM response to May 31,2020 civil disturbance 

 
 

 
On Saturday, May 30, 2020, the City of Seattle experienced both peaceful and 

violent protests in response to the killing of George Floyd. Soon after civil unrest 

began in Seattle, social media posts indicated that in addition to peaceful 

demonstrations, the downtown Bellevue area might be targeted for non-peaceful 

activities to include acts of vandalism and civil unrest on Sunday, May 31, 2020. 

NORCOM also learned that the City of Kirkland anticipated a related rally on the 

same day. 

 
While we understood that the vast majority of people exercising their constitutional 

rights would have peaceful intentions, we also acknowledged that crowd behavior 

is subject to many variables. We recognized that the Bellevue event location may 

be problematic for NORCOM and could impact employee safety and core 

operations. 

 
In preparation for this possibility, the NORCOM team held an emergency 

planning meeting to ensure our collective readiness to provide for the safety of 

our staff, while maintaining highly effective operations for our agencies. To best 

accomplish this critical task, NORCOM developed an Operations Plan and 

implemented an Incident Command Structure. Our mission priority was to 

provide and maintain the ability to safely staff and deliver effective services in 

support of our first responder agencies. 



2 

 

 

 
 

 
The plan included a command structure, concept of operations, planning 

assumptions, and communications strategy in support of the mission. 

 
In the pre-execution of the plan, NORCOM contacted all dispatch staff and 

apprised them of the situation and possible personal impacts. We advised those 

scheduled to work on Sunday to be fully prepared to respond to work early and 

to work beyond their standard shift length. We then directed those not 

scheduled to work, to be ready to report for work at either NORCOM location. 

The Redmond Communications Center manager was apprised of this possibility, 

and NORCOM IT staff was then sent to test the backup center funct ionality. 

Additionally, we developed an overstaffing plan to fill all dispatch functions far 

beyond "normal staffing." 

 
On Sunday, May 31, at 0700, NORCOM Command enacted the plan, updated 

staff , and assigned personnel to individual team positions. Throughout the day, 

NORCOM Command interacted closely with our team as well as our Police and 

Fire commanders. We also worked closely with our various agency 

representatives and monitored social media and news sources. 

 
The Kirkland event remained peaceful and had no impact on NORCOM 

Operations . The Bellevue event was highly impactful. At approximately 1100 

hours, Bellevue Police officers began to report people arriving and assembling in 

increasingly larger groups in the downtown area . Shortly thereafter, officers 

began reporting acts of vandalism, weapons sightings, acts of violence, and 

looting at multiple locations. The police responded, and the NORCOM operation 

began in earnest and continued late into the evening. 

 
During this event, NORCOM Command monitored the situation and adjusted the 

staffing plan several times to absorb the volume of 911 calls and maintain the 

best service delivery possible to our Police and Fire responders. Our Fire Liaison 

was assigned to assist the NORCOM Deputy Director of Operations as well as the 

Zone 1 Fire Coordinator. The Law Enforcement Liaison was assigned to assist in 

the Bellevue Unified Command Post, and the Community Liaison was assigned to 

assist the Deputy Director of Operations, and monitor social media as well as 

various agency status updates. 

 
The 911 call volume rose quickly and steadily , and at its peak, our dispatchers 

handled 349 calls per hour as opposed to the previous Sunday maximum of 64 

calls per hour (see attached data). 



3 

 

 

 
 
 

Although we had many extra staff members, they too were quickly at capacity, 

and for several hours we had all incoming phone lines at capacity with up to six 

calls holding in the 911 phone queue. The volume of phone calls and radio 

traffic was not the only challenge; the emergent nature of the majority of calls 

was unprecedented. These included robberies in progress, widespread looting 

reports, people observed with rifles and handguns, shop owners fearfully hiding 

from looters on their roof, calls for help from mall security, and our police 

officers calling for backup while being surrounded and pelted with bottles. 

NORCOM dispatch communicated all protest-related calls for service directly to 

Bellevue Command, and Command directed resources as the situation dictated 

and allowed. 

 
Despite the challenges, the NORCOM dispatch team worked diligently to 

perform their duties until nearly midnight when the crowds began to disperse, 

and the community and first responders were safe. I believe the Incident 

Command team functioned effectively and collaboratively, and NORCOM staff 

felt safe and well cared for throughout the event. I observed that while this 

event was undoubtedly stressful, staff were mentally and technically prepared 

for the myriad of critical situations they navigated. While our after-action will 

likely identify improvement opportunities, I believe that the plan was well 

executed, and the NORCOM team performed admirably, particularly when this 

was an unprecedented situation for most NORCOM staff. 



 

 

m m m m m 

 

Call Volume (Standard  vs. Protest) 
 

- Previous    Week Volume     - P rotest Volume 

400 
 

SATURDAY, MAY 30th SUNDA, Y  MAY 31st MDNDAY, JUNE 1st 

 
 

350 
 
 
 
 

 
300 

 
 
 
 

 
250 

 

 

 

 
200 

 

 

 

 
150 

 
 
 
 

 
100 

 

 

 

 

so 

 

 
 

0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0    O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   O   D   O   O 

9.    9.     9.    9.   9. 9.     9.   9. 9. 9. 9.  9.    9.    9. 9. 9.    9.   9. 9. 9. 9. 9.    9.    9.    9. 9. 9. 9. 9.    9.    9.   9.   9. 9. 9. 9. 9.   9. 9. 9. 9. 9. 9.   9. 9.    9.    9. 9.  9.    9. 9.    9.    9.    9.    9.    9. 9. 9.   9. 9. 9. 
00 0    rl  N   M O   rl   N O   rl  N V 00 O   rl  N   M O   rl  N O   rl  N 00 O N M 

0   0   0   0   0    rl rl  rl rl rl rl rl rl rl N N N N D O O O O O O O O O rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl N N N N O O O O O O O O O O rl rl rl rl rl rl rl rl 

 
 00:00 01:00 02:00 03:00 04:00 05:00 06:00 07:00 08:00 09:00 10:00 11:00 12:00 13:00 14:00 15:00 16:00 17:00 18:00 19:00 20:00 21:00 22:00 23:00 

Sat ., 5/23  11 14 30 36 41 65 47 69 63 64 54 85 52 56 46 67 36 51 54 

Sat., 5/30 10 12 24 32 56 49 54 55 66 97 69 82 82 65 75 54 26 59 38 

Sun_ 5/24 24 16 19 5 20 12 40 19 27 30 36 50 46 62 64 54 44 61 49 40 53 42 33 42 

Sun., 5/31 16 19 20 14 s 21 8 22 29 58 54 63 50 68 91 130 216 349 250 211 216 182 132 62 

Mon., 5/25 so 52 54 21 27 23 9 27 26 41 33 55 52 53 55 35 28 40  

Mon., 6/1 45 52 34 14 15 22 46 53 84 97 107 164 188 158 114 114 110 28 

 



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: Hiring update- IT Director Katy Myers

Executive Summary:
NORCOM is pleased to announce the hiring of Katy Myers at the NORCOM IT Director.  

Background:
The previous NORCOM IT Director resigned in late 2019 and despite numerous attempts, NORCOM
was unable to identify a highly skilled leader who was also a good fit for the NORCOM IT team.
Katy is well known throughout the Washington 911 community and has spent the last 20+ years at Clark
Regional Emergency Services Agency (CRESA).  After a few years as a Dispatcher, Communications
Training Officer, and Acting Dispatch Supervisor, she was promoted to Training Program/QA Manager
and then Operations Division Manager.  In her current role of Technical Services Division Manager, Katy
is responsible for internal and external information technologies, vendor management, contract oversight,
and is also the designated Acting Agency Director as needed.  
NORCOM is excited to welcome Katy Myers to the NORCOM family and anticipates that she will be a
great addition to the management team. Katy will join NORCOM on June 29th and is equally excited for
this opportunity. 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NA

Policy and Strategic Implications:
None

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff recommends that the Board review Katy Myers biography.

Staff Comments:
The filling of this position is of great benefit to the NORCOM IT team as well as the furtherance of
NORCOM's technology goals and obligations.

Options
None

Risks
None



Finance Committee Review: No
The hiring of the NORCOM IT Director 
Legal Review: No
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: 
NA 

Attachments
IT Director 



Meet NORCOM’s New IT Director 

Katy Myers will be joining NORCOM on June 29th.  Prior to accepting 

NORCOM’s offer, Katy spent the last 20+ years at Clark Regional Emergency 

Services Agency (CRESA) in roles of increasing responsibility. After a few years 

as a Dispatcher, Communications Training Officer, and Acting Dispatch 

Supervisor, she was promoted to Training Program/QA Manager and then 

Operations Division Manager.  In her current role of Technical Services 

Division Manager, Katy has oversite of internal and external information 

technologies, vendor management, contract oversight, and is also the designated Acting Agency 

Director as needed. In addition to Katy’s experience at CRESA, she has been involved with 

APCO-NENA and E911 for several years on a state level and is currently the Washington APCO-

NENA Vice President and the Washington State E911 NG911 Subcommittee Chair. 

Katy has a B.S. in Information Technology Management from Western Governors University and 

will complete a M.S. in Management and Leadership this year. The combination of Katy’s 

experience, education and involvement with public safety organizations has prepared her to 

excel in this role and we are excited to have her on the leadership team. Please join me in 

making her feel welcome. 



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 06/12/2020
Subject: Adoption of the 2021 Budget Policy Statement

Executive Summary:
NORCOM’s bylaws provide for the submission of a preliminary annual budget to the Governing Board no
later than 150 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.   As part of the budget process, the Executive
Director submits a proposed budget policy to the Governing Board setting forth the Board’s guidance for
the preparation of the coming year’s budget.  

Background:
In past years, the budget policy statement was presented to the Governing Board at the April meeting.  
Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, the April Governing Board meeting was canceled.  In addition, turnover
in key staff positions delayed the budget preparation process.  The attached resolution and proposed
budget policy is presented for consideration and adoption by the Governing Board.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
NORCOM’s bylaws provide for the submission of a preliminary annual budget to the Governing Board.

Policy and Strategic Implications:
The NORCOM Budget Policy Statement is similar to those adopted in prior years.  It is a general policy
statement regarding the basis for estimating revenues and expenses, the level and use of reserves, and
the budget calendar.   NORCOM is committed to providing high-quality services to Participating Agencies
and the public through the allocation of resources to provide for stable funding sources and predictable
rates for Participating Agencies.   The budget is prepared with the goal of resilience and is
forward-looking to anticipate changes in service levels, revenue sources, and membership.  

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends approval.

Staff Comments:
Although NORCOM staff is just beginning preparation of the budget, the Board should be aware of
several policy issues that are likely to impact the 2021 and/or future budgets.   More information on each
of these policy issues is presented to the Governing Board within the budget transmittal document.

Options
NA



NA

Risks
NA

Finance Committee Review: Yes
The Finance Committee and the Finance manager have reviewed this document. 
Legal Review: Yes
NA 
Joint Operations Board Review: No
NA 

Attachments
2021 Budget Policy Statement 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Memorandum 

To: NORCOM Governing Board 

From: Bill Hamilton 

Date: June 12, 2020 

Subject: Adoption of 2021 NORCOM Budget Policy Statement 

 
Executive Summary 

 
Adoption of 2021 NORCOM Budget Policy statement. 

Background 

NORCOM’s bylaws require the Operations Boards to submit a preliminary 

annual budget to the Governing Board no later than 150 days prior to the 

beginning of the fiscal year. As part of the budget process, the Executive 

Director submits a proposed budget policy to the Governing Board setting forth 

the Board’s guidance for preparation of the coming year’s budget. 

 

Past Board or Other Related to Actions 
 

In past years, the budget policy statement was presented to the Governing 

Board at the April meeting. Due to the COVID19 restrictions, the April 

Governing Board meeting was cancelled. In addition, turnover in key staff 

positions delayed the budget preparation process. The attached resolution 

#182 and proposed budget policy is presented for consideration and adoption 

by the Governing Board. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy and Strategic Implications 
 

The NORCOM Budget Policy Statement is similar those adopted in prior years. It 

is a general policy statement regarding the basis for estimating revenues and 

expenses, the level and use of reserves and the budget calendar. NORCOM is 

committed to providing high quality services to Participating Agencies and the 

public through the allocation of resources that to providing for stable funding 

sources and predictable rates for Participating Agencies. The budget is prepared 

with the goal of resilience and is forward-looking to anticipate changes in 

services levels, revenue sources and membership. 

 

Although NORCOM staff is just beginning preparation of the budget, the Board 

should be aware of several policy issues that are likely to impact the 2021 

and/or future budgets. More information on each of these policy issues will be 

presented to the Governing Board with transmittal of the proposed budget: 

 

 NORCOM relies on 911 revenue sharing from King County to provide funding 

for NORCOM staff. In 2020, NORCOM will receive $1,393,239 in 911 revenue 

sharing funds which represents 1.1% of NORCOM’s operating revenue. 

NORCOM has been notified by King County’s 911 Office that in order to fund IT 

staff to support the new platform project, NORCOM’s 911 revenue sharing will 

be reduced by $220,000 in 2021, resulting in an anticipated funding of

$1173.239. 
 
 
 

 The E911 Strategic Plan adopted in April 2018 calls for replacement of the 

County’s 911 technology “dual platform” model is estimated to cost $14 

million. The King County 911 Office has indicated that it plans to pull back 911 

revenue sharing from all Public Safety Answering Points in the county to fund 

the project. At this time, the County has not issued a Request for Proposals for 

the system replacement and so the actual cost is not known at this time. This is 

an ongoing discussion for the Regional Advisory Governing Board” (RAGB) and 

King County E-911 Financial Workgroup. It is not clear at this time whether the 

replacement project financing will impact the 2021 budget since the cost of the 

project is uncertain. https://kingcounty.gov/~/media/depts/it/e-911/KC- 

911_StrategicPlan_20171218.ashx?la=en
 
 
 

 
 

 
2 



 
 
 
 
 

 NORCOM has been notified by the PSERN (Puget Sound Emergency Radio 

Network) and King County that we will be charged market-based lease rate for 

them to host our antennas/equipment at their radio sites, to include the 

antennae towers as well as equipment shelters. NORCOM has both VHF voice 

(.190) and Alphanumeric Paging equipment at our radio sites that will be 

affected by this new cost. Historically, we have not paid any amount of rent at 

any King County radio site but it appears that this may change. Again, the 

potential impact is not known at this time nor when the new rates will be 

effective but it is worth keeping in mind for future budgets. NORCOM will likely 

engage in negotiations with King County and PSERN in this regard.

 
 
 

 Internally, the Executive Director has leaned that the cost allocation for calls for 

service between Participating Agencies may have been incorrectly coded in 

some cases.  While the degree and duration of possible error is not yet known, 

a team has been assembled to fully investigate this. Should an error be 

substantiated, correction of the miscoding will likely result in a redistribution of 

rates among NORCOM’s participating agencies. Once more is known about the 

extent and amount of the correction, staff will bring options to the Governing 

Board to consider regarding the method and timing of any adjustments that are 

needed.

 

 
 In the 2020 Budget, the Governing Board created a “Position Vacancy

Contingency” as an offsetting line-item in the agencies wage and benefit costs. 

The Vacancy Contingency was created to recognize the high level of vacancies 

in telecommuter positions and the resulting costs savings. Those cost savings 

were historically carried over to the subsequent year’s budget and used for 

one-time expenses. The Vacancy Contingency was one of the strategies used 

to balance the NORCOM 2020 budget. 

 
Beginning in December 2019, all telecommuter positions were filled, and the 

reduced vacancy rate has continued into 2020. If this trend continues, salary 

saving typically realized from telecommuter salaries will be reduced. However, 

vacancies in administrative and management positions have been higher than 

usual which may provide some offsetting salary savings. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
3 



 
 
 
 
 

 The Executive Director is working with the leadership team to reorganize the 

administration and technology functions to create efficiencies and operations 

and, potentially, costs. The net effect of these changes and ongoing impact will 

be fully discussed with the proposed budget transmittal.

 
 Finally, the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted our partners’ finances in varying 

degrees. Understanding that NORCOM provides an essential service, 

development of costs and rates for the coming year will take into consideration 

the financial challenges our Participating Agencies are facing. The Executive

Director will prepare a “status quo” budget: 

o That is balanced; 

o That appropriately recognizes actual changes in revenues and expenses 

that are known for 2021; 

o That works toward stabilizing rates through conservative expenditure 

estimates and the appropriate use of reserves if needed to maintain 

services and minimize impacts to Participating Agencies. 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation 
 

Approve resolution #182 and adopt the proposed 2021 Budget Policy 

statement. It is anticipated that the proposed budget will be presented to the 

Governing Board at the August 2020 meeting. 

 

Finance Committee Review: Yes 

Legal Review: Yes 

Joint Operations Board Review: No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
4 



NORCOM RESOLUTION NO. 182 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF NORCOM 

APPROVING THE 2021 BUDGET POLICY. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12(b) of the North East King County Regional Public 

Safety Communications Agency Interlocal Agreement (the “Interlocal Agreement”), the 

Governing Board of NORCOM is required to adopt a budget policy for the upcoming annual 

budget no later than June 1 after such policy has been reviewed by the Joint Operating Board and 

presented at the annual Principal’s Assembly; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the 2019 novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic and related 

proclamations and orders, at its May 8, 2020 regular meeting, the Governing Board voted to 

postpone the Principal’s Assembly for an indefinite period of time and to waive deadlines 

provided for in the Interlocal Agreement related to such meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NORCOM Executive Director has prepared and submitted to the Joint 

Operations Board a proposed budget policy for fiscal year 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board now desires to approve the proposed budget policy 

for fiscal year 2021, as provided herein: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of NORCOM as 

follows: 
 

Section 1. Approval of Budget Policy. Pursuant to the terms of the  Interlocal 

Agreement, the Governing Board hereby approves the budget policy for fiscal year 2021, 

substantially in the form presented to the Governing Board and attached hereto as Exhibit A and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Further Authority; Prior Acts. All NORCOM officials, their agents, and 

representatives are hereby authorized and directed to undertake all action necessary or desirable from 

time to time to carry out the terms of, and complete the transactions contemplated by, this resolution. 

All acts taken pursuant to the authority of this resolution but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified 

and confirmed. 

 

Section 3.   Effective Date.   This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage  

and adoption. 
 

Passed by a majority vote of the Governing Board in an open meeting on this 12th day of June, 

2020. 
 

Signed in authentication thereof on this 12th day of June, 2020. 
 

 

Chair 



NORCOM 

2021 Proposed Budget Policy 

Discussion Paper 

 

NORCOM’s budget process is part of an overall policy framework that guides the services and 

functions of the agency. The budget serves a key role by allocating financial resources to the programs, 

which implement NORCOM’s mission and core values. The budget also establishes financial policies 

to influence the availability of future resources that continue to carry out NORCOM’s mission and core 

values. 

 
Budget Policy development involves several steps. NORCOM budget policy starts with an 

understanding of service levels and issues impacting operations. NORCOM’s management team 

evaluates performance measures to assess organizational costs and effectiveness, and determine issues 

impacting 2021 operating priorities and the level of funding for each. Budget policies are statements 

that describe how financial resources will be obtained, allocated, managed, and controlled. 

 
NORCOM’s mission statement and core values are the broad policy statements that outline the 

objectives of the Governing Board. Budget objectives are policy statements summarizing the actions 

that are to be implemented in the budget. 

 
Financial Management Policies 

The following policies will guide the manner in which NORCOM develops, allocates, manages and 

controls financial resources available to the agency. These policies are the goals that the Governing 

Board seeks to achieve in its decision making and most are documented in NORCOM’s Standard 

Operating Procedures. However, since fiscal conditions and circumstances continually shift and change 

in response to operating needs, it may not be practical or always desirable to continually achieve these 

policies. Therefore, these policies are intended to guide, not govern, financial decision making and may 

not be fully achieved within any budget period. 

 

General Financial Goals 

 To provide a financial base sufficient to sustain consistent high quality emergency service 

communications to the public for emergency medical services, fire and police by receiving calls 

for service; dispatching resources, tracking and coordinating information flow and resources, 

initiating records for all emergency events, and enhancing effectiveness, efficiency, 

coordination and interoperability of emergency service providers.

 To be able to withstand local and regional economic hardships sustained by our participating 

and subscribing agencies and adjust to changes in their service level requirements.

 To adapt to changing funding resources from other governments.

Operating Budget Policies 

 The operating budget is NORCOM’s comprehensive financial plan which provides for the level 

of services prescribed by the Participating Agencies, including additional services or new 

programs as approved in subsequent years. A new budget will be adopted every year as a result 

of a comprehensive process incorporating any newly approved programs, inflationary increases, 

and other expenses. New programs will be analyzed by the Executive Director and Finance



Manager before being presented to the Joint Operating Board for their analysis and review and, 

if approved, incorporated into the budget. No “one-time” expenses will be carried forward into 

subsequent budgets without specific authority. 

 NORCOM defines a balanced budget as current annual revenues (including fund balances) 

being equal to or greater than current annual expenditures.

 All current operating expenditures will be paid from current revenues and cash carried over from 

the prior year. Current revenues and operating expenditures will be reviewed quarterly during 

the year.

 NORCOM will maintain revenue and expenditure categories according to state statute and 

administrative regulation.

 

Amendment/Adjustment Policies: 

 All supplemental appropriations for programs requested after the original budget is adopted, 

will only be approved by the Governing Board after consideration of the availability of revenues.

 

Revenue Policies: 

 “Other” Revenues shall be realistically estimated and based upon the most recent information 

available.

 NORCOM will follow a vigorous policy of collecting revenues.

 NORCOM will seek to avoid dependence on temporary or unstable revenues to fund ongoing 

mission critical services.

 Grant funds or similar contractual revenue of a temporary nature will be budgeted only if they 

are committed at the time of the preliminary budget. Otherwise, separate appropriations will be 

made during the year as grants are awarded or contracts made.

Expenditure Policies: 

 The NORCOM budget will provide for a sustainable level of service for the well-being of 

employees and safety of the emergency service providers.

 Expenditures approved by the Governing Board in the annual budget define NORCOM’s 

spending limits for the upcoming year. In addition to legal requirements, NORCOM will 

maintain an operating philosophy of cost control and responsible financial management.

 The Governing Board will be provided with a discussion paper for any new program detailing 

the expenditure, the recommended funding source, an analysis of the fiscal impact and a review 

of all reserves and previously approved amendments since budget adoption.

 Emphasis is placed on improving individual and work group productivity rather than adding to 

the work force. NORCOM will invest in technology and other efficiency tools to maximize 

productivity. NORCOM will request additional staff only after the need of such positions has 

been demonstrated and documented.

Capital Projects and Equipment Replacement 

 NORCOM will maintain all its assets at an acceptable level to protect capital investment and to 

minimize future maintenance and replacement costs.



 NORCOM will conduct an equipment replacement and maintenance needs analysis, using a 

cash flow method, for the next several years and will update this projection every two years. 

From this projection a maintenance and replacement schedule will be developed and followed.

 Equipment Replacement will be fully funded according to the cash flow schedule to minimize 

large increases in User Fees from year to year resulting from acquisition or replacement of 

capital, and to fund the timely replacement of aging technology, equipment, and systems

 NORCOM will identify the estimated costs and potential funding sources for each capital 

project proposal before it is submitted for approval.

 NORCOM will coordinate development of the Capital Projects budget with development of the 

operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital project will be projected 

and included in operating budget forecasts.

Operating Reserves and Contingency: 

 Per section 12h of the ILA, each budget year the Governing Board shall set the Operating 

Expense Reserve at a level that ensures funds are on hand to reasonably address unforeseen 

operating contingencies. NORCOM currently maintains an Operating Expense Reserve at a 

level equal to 5% of the total Operating Budget. For the purpose of determining Operating 

Expense Reserve funding, the Governing Board defines the Operating Budget as the operating 

fund expenses less salaries, benefits, and one-time expenses.

 The Rate Stabilization Fund shall not exceed 10% of current Operating Fund Revenues. The 

amount in the fund shall be analyzed to determine the long-term effect on rates. If it is 

determined that funds will be used to offset transition to higher rates or fund one-time 

expenditures the designated amount shall be applied to the overall budget prior to calculating 

assessments.

 All expenditures drawn from reserve accounts shall require prior Board approval unless 

previously authorized for expenditure in the annual budget.

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting Policies 

 NORCOM will establish and maintain a high standard of accounting practices.

 Accounting and budgetary systems will, at all times, conform to Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles, the State of Washington Budgeting Accounting Reporting System 

(BARS) and local regulations.

 A comprehensive accounting system will be maintained to provide all financial information 

necessary to effectively operate NORCOM.

 NORCOM’s budget documents shall be presented in a format that provides for logical 

comparison with prior annual actual totals wherever possible.

 Reports outlining the status of revenues and expenditures shall be done monthly beginning in 

March of each year and will be distributed to the Governing Board, Joint Operations Board, 

Executive Director, Finance Committee, Department managers and any other interested party.

 An annual audit will be performed by the State Auditor’s Office.

 
Budget Calendar 

 In order to facilitate and implement the budget process the Finance Manager will develop and 

distribute a budget calendar.



2021 BUDGET CALENDAR 
 

 
June 

 

Finance Committee approves budget policy June 9 

Governing Board adopts budget policy/ ILA 12(b) June 12 

Budget Development complete June 30 

July 
 

Executive Director presents preliminary budget to Joint Op. Board/ILA 12(c) July 1 

User Fee updates complete July 10 

August 
 

Proposed budget transmitted to Governing Board/ILA 12(c) August 1 

Public hearing & board approval by Governing Board/ ILA 12(c) August 14 

September 
 

Participating agencies advised of budget and user fees/ ILA 12(c) September 4 

December 
 

Approval by the legislative authorities of each Participating/Subscriber/ ILA 
12(c) 

December 9 

Governing Board adopts final budget/ ILA12(c) December 11 
 


